

MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE Thursday, 14 December 2017

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), and Councillors

Beverley Murray, Paul Walmsley and Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Asim Khan (Director

(Customer and Digital)), Mark Lester (Director (Business, Economic and Growth)), Chris Moister (Head of Legal, Democratic & HR Services), Jo Oliver (Waste and Streetscene Manager) and Dianne Scambler (Democratic

and Member Services Officer)

APOLOGIES: Councillor Peter Wilson and Graham Dunn

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillor Danny Gee, Tom Gray, Matthew Lynch,

June Molyneaux, Alistair Morwood, Richard Toon,

Eric Bell, Greg Morgan and John Walker

17.EC.114 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 16 November 2017 of Executive Cabinet

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet held on 16 November be confirmed as a correct record for signing by the Chair.

17.EC.115 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of any interests.

17.EC.116 Public Questions

There were no questions submitted by any members of the public.

17.EC.117 Play, Open Space and Playing Pitch Strategy

The Executive Leader presented a report of the Director of Business, Development and Growth that updated members on the delivery on the Play, Open Spaces and Playing Pitch Strategy and sought approval for the allocation of existing Section 106 money to schemes, as identified within the Strategy and in accordance with site assessments and policy, in order to continue its delivery.

The existing Strategy is a five year plan from 2014 – 2019 and with the fourth year almost complete, the Council are now working to deliver year five and plan for future years. All of the sites identified in the action plan were those that scored low for quality

or value or those which are located in areas of high usage and subsequently need investment to improve and modernise facilities and infrastructure. A forward plan is needed in advance to justify the collection of developer contributions from new developments and also inform the pooling of Section 106 monies.

The report provided an update on completed schemes to date and detailed the next round of schemes, following a 'light touch' assessment and strategy refresh by officers, pending the publication of the new Open Space and Sports Recreation Strategy 2020 – 2025 which is expected to be completed by Spring 2019. Consultation with Members and the public will be carried out by external consultants throughout 2018 in order to capture suggestions for sites not already included in the existing Strategy.

An overview of the approximate budgets required against the types of schemes was also provided along with the amounts of funding already receipted for spend against each one.

Members discussed the provision of play equipment for older children and adults. Schemes like Trim Trails to promote healthier lifestyles have been earmarked for inclusion at Coronation Recreational Ground and the Westway Campus.

Decision:

- 1. Approval granted for the next phase of projects to enable continued delivery of the play, open space and playing pitch strategy and associated action plan.
- 2. The allocation of Section 106 monies to the schemes identified in the refreshed strategy action plan be noted.
- 3. Delegated approval granted of the detailed projects and associated tender exercise to the Executive Member subject to consultation with appropriate ward members.
- 4. Approval granted for the commission of a new Open Space, Playing Pitches and Recreation Strategy in partnership with South Ribble and Preston Councils linking into the upcoming Local Plan review to provide a new strategy from 2020 to 2025 at an estimated cost of £30,000.

Reasons for recommendation(s):

In order to require and collect developer contributions for Play and Open Space, the Council needs to have in place a strategy which sets out where that investment is required. The Council continually requests and collects Section 106 contributions that are allocated to scheme ready for delivery when all the money required is collected.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

If the Council does not have a forward plan of schemes, it would lose the opportunity to request contributions from developers. Section 106 contributions must be spent within a certain timeframe on the agreed scheme; any monies collected could be at risk if not spent.

17.EC.118 Exclusion of the Public and Press

To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

17.EC.119 Approval for the contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for the procurement of a new waste and recycling collection contract.

The Executive Member (Resources) presented the report of the Director of Customer and Digital that sought approval for the contract award procedure and evaluation criteria for the waste and recycling collection contract for households in the Borough. The report also sought approval for waste collection service options and ancillary services which would form part of the tender.

The Council's current waste and recycling collection contract expires on 31 March 2019 and is the largest contract that the Council procures and is high risk in terms of value and reputational risk. It is also a high profile service that is provided to all residents of the Borough.

Consultants, AEA Ricardo were appointed by the Council to assist with this procurement and have completed work on modelling the potential options along with risks and benefits for the new contract. The Council has significant targets to achieve for the 2019/20 budget with a 2017/18 MTFS target of £250,000 for this contract. It was recommended that the service continued to be outsourced. Four options were modelled within the report with indicative costings provided for each one.

The findings of the consultant's report had been presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 30 November with Option 2 (four weekly blue bin collections) to be included in the tender documentation being recommended by the Committee.

The Council's consideration to either purchase or lease the waste collection vehicles would only be taken up if deemed to be a cost effective option for the authority. The Executive Cabinet accepted that there was an element of risk to these proposals and that any such proposals would be explored fully.

The new contract would include a review of the current waste collection rounds within the first year of the contract to ensure a high level of productivity and efficiency will be achieved. This review would be undertaken by the new service provider and details on how this would be carried out would form part of the tender. This is likely to result in a number of day changes which will cause some short term disruption.

The Council had explored the potential for partnership working with other Councils due geography and contract expiry dates there had been limited possibilities. The proposed contract length is for ten years with a two year extension option so that it will align with the current South Ribble contract which will end in June 2029.

Members commented on how disappointed they were with current recycling rates across the country and asked if Chorley could look at making improvements where possible. Lancashire County Council does not wish to discuss this any further at present and it was thought that rates would only improve when incineration of recycled products was a viable option.

Decision:

- 1. Approval granted for the waste and recycling service to continue to be outsourced.
- 2. Approval granted for the waste tender to be based on the current service and tenders to be evaluated on this basis. Bidders will also be asked to

- price for Option 2, the four weekly collection of plastic, bottles, can and glass (blue Bins) with other waste streams collected as current.
- 3. Approval granted for the recommended ancillary services detailed in section 43 of the report.
- 4. Approval granted that the contract period be for ten years with the option of a two year extension.
- 5. Approval granted for the cost quality ratio for the tender evaluation be 60:40.
- 6. Approval granted for the waste collection vehicles to be financed and procured by the Council provided it is cheaper to do so.
- 7. Approval granted for the award of contract to be submitted to Executive Cabinet and full Council in July 2018.

Reason for recommendation(s):

- 1. Evaluation of the consultant's report along with assessment of how we can deliver ancillary services has resulted in the recommendations outlined in the report.
- 2. Under the Council's contract procedure rules approval by Executive Cabinet is required for contracts over £75,000.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

- A number of other service delivery and collection service options have been considered and these are described in the report along with reasons for unsuitability.
- 2. To not agree contract procedure and award would fail to comply with the Council's procurement rules.

17.EC.120 Business Development and Growth Restructure

The Executive Leader presented the report of the Director of Business, Development and Growth that presented a proposal for restructuring the Business, Development and Growth Directorate.

The directorate wide review follows on from the review of senior management in 2016 and subsequent appointment of a new Director of Business, Development and Growth in 2017.

The Business, Development and Growth directorate is key to delivering the Council's priority of a strong local economy and the aim of the restructure was to develop a fit for purpose structure which will have the right skills and capacity to deliver existing services and drive forward economic growth through ambitious projects such as the digital health park and bringing forward employment sites.

The proposed restructure would also increase capacity in planning policy and planning obligations and adoptions and will create a number of fixed term project posts to drive forwards capital projects such as Digital Health, Primrose Gardens, Market Walk Extension and other income generating employment sites.

Decision:

- 1. Approval granted of the proposed structure for consultation.
- 2. Approval granted for the Executive Member for Economic Development and Public Service Reform be given delegated authority for approving the final structure following the period of formal consultation, subject to there being no significant changes to what was proposed in the report.

Reasons for recommendation(s):

To ensure the structure of the directorate is fit for purpose and meets the needs of the business in the future.

Alternative options considered and rejected:

To continue with the existing structure is an option, however it has been rejected as the current structure is not meeting the current needs of the service. This is partly due to the number of vacant posts, but also the additional work created by a large number of large capital projects which are consuming a significant amount of staff time. Additionally continuing with the existing structure would not achieve the financial savings which are required to meet the MTFS savings target.

Chair	Date